
Minutes 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Association of Small Business Development Centers (ASBDC) 
May 27, 2008 

By Conference Call 
 
 
Board Members Participating:  Jody Keenan (Chair); Don Wilson; Georgianna Parkin (Vice 
Chair); Jerry Cartwright (Secretary); Becky Naugle; Debbie Trujillo; Mary Lynn Wilkerson; 
Rich Werner. 
 
Others Participating:  Christine Krygier; Gayle Kugler; Carol Lopucki; Barbara Necarsulmer; 
Mark Petrilli; Jacqueline Taylor; Mike Young; Dan O’Grady.  
 
Call to Order:  The meeting was called to order by Chair Keenan at 3:00 p.m. (Eastern Daylight 
Savings Time) on Tuesday, May 27, 2008.   
 
Approval of Minutes:  Georgianna Parkin moved that the minutes of the Board meeting held by 
conference call on April 22, 2008, be approved.  The motion was seconded by Becky Naugle and 
passed by voice vote.  
 
Financial Report:  Don Wilson reviewed the Association’s financial statements for March and 
April and reported that the financial position of the Association is sound.   
 
Technology Counselor Certification:  Chair Keenan updated the Board on the progress of the 
Technology Counselor Certification initiative.  She stated that a contract between the 
Association and Andrew Sherman is being developed, for the provision of Technology 
Counselor Certification services.  The Association is seeking a member of the nationwide SBDC 
network to serve on the advisory board that will oversee the Technology Counselor Certification 
program, and the Association expects to implement the program at the ASBDC Annual 
Conference in Chicago, in September. 
 
Program Announcement Negotiations with SBA:  Chair Keenan reported to the Board on the 
results of the negotiations with the SBA on the 2009 Program Announcement.  She commended 
the members of the ASBDC Operations Committee and Committee Chairman Mark Petrilli for 
their excellent work.  She stated that the negotiations had been very successful.  She noted that, 
among the most important provisions of the 2009 Program Announcement, is the provision 
which calls for SBDC networks to submit their 2009 proposals based on the amount of their 
2008 Notices of Award.  The SBA had originally intended for 2009 proposals to be based on the 
Administration’s budget proposal, which is $10 million below the 2008 appropriation.  Chair 
Keenan stated that the ASBDC and the SBA would hold a joint conference call with all SBDC 
state directors on June 2, to review the 2009 Program Announcement and answer any questions 
that state directors might have. 
 
Election Committee:  Chair Keenan stated that the Board needed to appoint the members of the 
Election Committee, in preparation for the election of new Board members during the 



 2 

Association’s Business Meeting in Chicago in September.  Chair Keenan nominated Mary Lynn 
Wilkerson to chair the Committee.  Two additional Committee members will be named at a later 
date. 
 
 Motion:  Chair Keenan moved that Mary Lynn Wilkerson be appointed to chair the 
 Election Committee.  Georgianna Parkin seconded the motion and the motion passed by 
 voice vote. 
 
Communications and Marketing Committee Proposal:  Jacqueline Taylor, Chair of the 
ASBDC Communications and Marketing Committee, presented a proposed communications and 
marketing plan to the Board.  She recognized the work of past members of the Committee, who 
began the work of developing a communications and marketing plan for the Association.  She 
thanked the current members of the Committee for their hard work in developing the proposal.  
She stated that the Committee’s objective was to develop an effective and practical plan that 
could be implemented within the constraints of the Association’s budget.  She stated that the goal 
of the proposed plan is to make the activities, value and accomplishments of the nationwide 
SBDC network better known to stakeholders, as called for by the priorities established by the 
Board for 2008-2009.  She reviewed the initiatives proposed in the plan, including branding 
initiatives; a new “e-report” to stakeholders; the development of new communications and 
marketing materials; recognition awards; and the identification and sharing of best practices.   
 
Chair Keenan stated that Jerry Cartwright, the Board liaison to the Committee, was very 
supportive of the plan.  She thanked Committee Chair Jacqueline Taylor and the members of the 
Committee for their proposal. 
 
 Motion:  Chair Keenan moved that the Board approve the plan proposed by the 
 Communications and Marketing Committee.  The motion was seconded by Becky Naugle 
 and passed by voice vote. 
 
President’s Report:  
 

Operations Committee:  Don Wilson thanked the members of the Operations Committee 
for their work in the successful negotiations with SBA on the 2009 Program 
Announcement.  He said that he hoped state directors would participate in the joint 
ASBDC / SBA conference call to discuss the Program Announcement on June 2. 

 
 Technology Counselor Certification:  Don Wilson stated that the Association’s law firm 
 was working on the contract with Andrew Sherman to establish the new Technology 
 Counselor Certification program. 
 

Community Express Loan Program:  Don Wilson updated the Board on the status of the 
Community Express Loan Program.  SBA has stated that the number of Community 
Express loans has reached the legal cap of 10% of the SBA’s 7(a) loan portfolio.  SBA 
has stated that it is trying to find a way to keep the Community Express Loan program 
functioning.   

 



 3 

 Preston HUD Nomination:  Don Wilson stated that the nomination of SBA Administrator 
 Preston to serve as Secretary of the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
 (HUD) is proceeding quickly in the Senate.  He stated that it is expected that Deputy 
 Administrator Jovita Carranza will replace Administrator Preston if and when Mr. 
 Preston’s nomination to HUD is approved by the Senate. 
 

Working with USDA:  Don Wilson stated that the U.S. Department of Agriculture has 
invited him to discuss ways in which the Department can work with the SBDC network.  
He noted that Congress is interested in greater cooperation between the USDA and 
SBDCs. 

 
Government Accountability Office Report on SBDCs Serving Veterans:  Don Wilson 
stated that the Government Accountability Office (GAO), an arm of the Congress, is 
writing a report on SBDCs and services for veterans.  He stated that the GAO has invited 
Donna Ettenson and him to meet with its staff. 
 
On-Line Registration Available for ASBDC Annual Conference:  Don Wilson stated that 
on-line registration for the ASBDC Annual Conference in Chicago in September is now 
up and running.  He thanked John Maynard (Chairman of the Conference Planning 
Committee), ASBDC staff and Intuit/Homestead for developing the on-line registration 
program for this year’s conference. 
 
ASBDC Seeking Conference Sponsors and Exhibitors:  Don Wilson stated that the 
Association is seeking sponsors and exhibitors for the ASBDC Annual Conference in 
Chicago in September.  He asked members to let him know if they know of any 
organizations that would like to sponsor or exhibit at the Annual Conference in Chicago.   
 
Notices of Awards:  Don Wilson stated that there are still some fiscal-year SBDC 
networks that have not received their FY 2008 Notices of Award from SBA.  He stated 
that the Association is working with the SBA Office of SBDCs to expedite those Notices 
of Award. 

 
Legislative Update:  Don Wilson stated that Congress has temporarily extended the Small 
Business Act through March, 2009, pending the passage of a multi-year Reauthorization bill.  He 
stated that the Association’s letters to Senator Kerry, Senator Snowe, Congresswoman 
Velazquez and Congressman Chabot (the chairs and ranking members of the Senate and House 
Small Business committees) have been sent.  The letters express support for the House and 
Senate Reauthorization bills, and also express concern about the impact of new competitive grant 
programs on core SBDC funding.  He stated that Congress has not yet passed the conference 
report on the FY 2009 Budget Resolution.  He stated that it is not known at this time whether 
there will be a hearing on SBA appropriations in the Senate Financial Services Appropriations 
Subcommittee.  Mary Lynn Wilkerson stated that the recently-enacted Farm Bill enables lenders 
to do more for small business owners in disasters, and she stated that this might allow SBDCs to 
do more to help clients recover from disasters.   
 
Liaison Reports: 



 4 

 
Late Notices of Awards:  Board members stated that the lateness of Notices of Awards 
from SBA has caused significant problems for a number of SBDC networks. 
 
Veterans and Energy Grants:  It was stated that a number of SBDC networks were 
interested in applying for the new Veterans and Energy grants.  It was stated that the 
Requests for Proposals for the new Veterans and Energy grant programs might be 
available in the coming weeks.  It was suggested that SBA should seek the input of the 
SBDC network in developing the RFPs. 
 
General Counselor Certification:  It was stated that the Counselor Certification Task 
Force is making progress in its work to develop a general counselor certification program 
for SBDC counselors/consultants. 
 
Legislative Policy:  It was stated that the Legislative Policy Advisory Committee 
completed the survey of Spring Meeting Congressional visits and advised the Board 
concerning the Association’s letters on the House and Senate Reauthorization bills. 
 
Personnel Committee:  It was stated that the Personnel Committee is working on new job 
descriptions for the Association. 
 
Portability Grants:  It was stated that the SBA is unwilling to allow a Portability Grant 
proposal to be amended.  Don Wilson stated that he would look into the problem. 

 
Committee Updates for the June Board Meeting and the Annual Conference in September:  Chair 
Keenan asked Board members to get updates from their assigned committees, taskforces and 
interest sections, for discussion during the Board meeting in June, in Washington, DC.  She also 
stated that the Board will ask committee, taskforce and interest section chairs to prepare written 
updates for the ASBDC Business Meeting in September, in Chicago. 
 
Executive Session: 
 

Motion:  Chair Keenan moved that the Board enter Executive Session for the purpose of 
discussing personnel matters.  The motion was seconded by Becky Naugle and passed by 
voice vote.   

 
Motion:  Mary Lynn Wilkerson moved that the Board exit Executive Session.  The 
motion was seconded by Rich Werner and passed by voice vote.   

 
Adjournment:  Bill Carter moved that the meeting adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Mary 
Lynn Wilkerson and passed by voice vote.  The meeting adjourned at 6:00 p.m. (Eastern 
Daylight Time), on Tuesday, May 27, 2008. 
 
Next Meetings of the Board:   
 

The next meeting of the Board will be held in Washington, DC, June 8-10. 



 5 

 
Regular meetings of the Board are held by conference call on the fourth Tuesday of each 
month, at 3:00 p.m. (Eastern Time), with the following exceptions: 

 
• September 1, 2008 (Monday, in Chicago) 

 
• October 14-15, 2008 (Tuesday and Wednesday) 

 
• January 13-14, 2009 (Tuesday and Wednesday) 

 
• March 1, 2009 (Sunday, preceding the Spring Meeting) 

 
• June 9-10, 2009 (Tuesday and Wednesday) 

 
• September 13, 2009 (Sunday, preceding the Fall Conference in Orlando) 

 
• October 13-14 (Tuesday and Wednesday) 

 
 


